Minutes of Combs Parish Council Meeting Monday 10th July 2023 at 7.30pm, Battisford Cricket Club

Present: T Kitson (chair); S Ottewell (vice chair); T Betchley (councillor); A Tomlinson (councillor); K Oakes (county councillor); J Matthissen (district councillor) T Bamber (clerk)

1. Apologies for Absence

There were no absences.

2. Declarations of Interest/Lobbying

There were no issues involving councillors' interests.

3. Public Forum

No members of the public were present.

4. Minutes of Meeting held on Monday 12th June 2023

Minutes for Monday 12th June 2023 were reviewed and it was agreed that they be signed as a true and accurate record of the meeting by the chairman.

5. Matters arising from the Minutes

There were no matters arising that are not dealt with elsewhere.

6. County Councillor's Report

The county councillor had previously provided her report and this is attached as appendix 1. Cllr Oakes informed councillors that she was still awaiting news from the engineers regarding the inconsiderate contractors at the building site in Bildeston Road.

7. District Councillor's Report

The district councillor went through his report and this is attached as appendix 2. The chair updated Cllr Matthissen and councillors on recent disturbances at the Mavam Housing units on Park Road. The chair will forward to Cllr Matthissen a copy of the disappointingly unhelpful email from the community safety officer at MSDC.

The district councillors left to attend another parish council meeting at this point, with thanks from councillors.

8. Parish Council Chairman's Report

The chair had no matters to raise that were not dealt with elsewhere

9. Planning

a. Applications received for consideration:

There were no applications to consider

b. Decisions received from MSDC:

- i. DC/23/02079 Holy Oak Barn installation of log burner listed building consent granted -noted
- ii. DC/23/01974 The Appleyard, Bildeston Road -extension of time granted noted

Makon

10. Finance

a. Accounts review to date

The clerk reported that the Current Account balance with Santander as of 30 May 2023 was calculated to be £39,286.13 (no statement yet received) and the savings account balance was £0, while the new Unity account had £21,576.39 in the current account.

Cllr Ottewell had suggested that, to record matters properly, there should be separate pages on the accounts for each bank account. The clerk felt that, as there was only one month of overlap between the two accounts, to redesign the finance papers would be unduly burdensome. Recognising that Cllr Ottewell's approach was the correct way, the clerk confirmed that he would take responsibility for discussing any issues raised by the auditor over this. All agreed that, with such a low level of activity in the council's finances, the ability of the council to keep track of the position was never in doubt.

The Budget analysis and financial summary were reviewed, and these were accepted.

The clerk confirmed that Cllrs Ottewell, Betchley and Tomlinson had the authority to approve BACS payments, while the clerk had the power to access balances and statement and to set up payments ready for authorisation. After a discussion it was agreed that the chair should also have the same authority levels as the clerk, in case of absences.

b. Payments received

(i) (none)

c. Payments to hand

- (i) Npower electricity for streetlights (direct debit) June £120.81 and July £107.50: These were approved by all councillors (*Parish Councils Act 1957, S.3; Highways Act 1980 s.301*)
- (ii) Combs PC transfer of £500 from Santander to open new Unity Account: This action had been approved previously but it was important to record this as a payment. The cheque, number 22320, was approved by all councillors.
- (iii) Suffolk Association of Local Councils internal audit £255.60 This was approved by all councillors (Local Government Act 1972 s 111). No cheque was drawn (see below 10d).

d. Review of Draft Updated Financial Regulations

The clerk had sought guidance from ClIr Ottewell and then circulated this prior to the meeting. With the exception of ClIr Betchley, who had just returned from holiday and not had time to read it, councillors agreed to adopt the new version. ClIr Betchley will contact the clerk after reviewing the document should he have any reservations about it.

Now the regulations were in place councillors agreed that the payment to SALC for internal audit fees mentioned above should be paid by BACS.

e. New Direct Debit for Electricity

The clerk had obtained the form for setting up a new direct debit for electricity on the new Unity bank account and councillors authorised Cllrs Ottewell and Tomlinson to sign it.

Action: clerk to send form to NPower.

Alletan

11. Newsletter

Cllr Ottewell proposed that the next newsletter be out by mid September and invited councillors to submit ideas for items. The print date is set for 13 September.

12. Oaks Meadow

Cllr Betchley had no news to report

13. Correspondence /Any other business/ items for inclusion on the next agenda

- The chair advised that there had been more problems reported by residents living near to the Mavam
 Housing project in Park Road and that he had invoked the help of both district and county councillors, and
 the parish council has little power to effect improvements.
- The clerk reported that the cemetery cutting had not been as good as previously and he would be meeting
 the contractor next week to review the requirements. All councillors agreed that quality should take
 precedence over economy.
- items for next agenda: Newsletter; Data backup; PIIP

14. Date and time of next meeting - Monday 11th September 2023 at 7:30pm, Battisford Cricket Club

The Meeting closed at 8.34 pm

Appendix 1

County Council report July 2023

Suffolk Fire Service to bring control room back to the County

Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service has announced plans to create a new fire control centre here in Suffolk.

Since October 2011, Suffolk has shared a control room with Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire and Rescue Service in Huntingdon. The joint project has worked well, saving both fire services money and enabling greater cross-border resource sharing.

However, the company behind a project to deliver a new IT system, initiated in 2019, has run into technical and financial problems, causing a significant delay. This, in addition to advancements in technology, has led to the decision to bring fire control back into the county by the end of 2024.

The proposed new control centre will be brought to Suffolk County Council's Cabinet for approval in September 2023.

Help for Suffolk Pre-payment Meter customers

A package of support has been created for pre-payment meter customers in Suffolk who are struggling with their energy bills.

Warm Homes Suffolk is a Suffolk-wide Council partnership service, delivering energy efficiency support to low-income households affected by cost-of-living pressures.

Supported by Suffolk's Collaborative Communities Board and funding from Public Health Suffolk's Contain Outbreak Management Fund (COMF), the service is now able to offer specific help for households struggling to pay their energy bills via a pre-payment meter, in addition to its existing support.

The support covers the whole of Suffolk and is available for all residents, whether they are in social housing, council tenants, owner occupiers or private renters.

The Warm Homes Suffolk Service can check eligibility and support applications for grants to increase household energy efficiency, with measures such as loft and wall insulation to air source heat pumps, draught-proofing and more.

It is estimated that more than 24,000 people in Suffolk are pre-payment meter customers.

The service will work with everyone to understand the pressures on their finances and the impact this is having on their lives. The service can carry out a home visit, as well as providing advice over the phone and by email.

The COMF funding of £180,000 will enable this project to run for 12 months to provide the following:

- Income maximisation (through grants and benefits)
- Budgeting advice
- Help understanding bills and heating systems
- Support to reduce energy expenditure (By promoting social tariffs and support to switch suppliers)
- Improving household energy efficiency (By installing insulation, draught proofing, heating systems and solar panels)
- Facilitating switch away from prepaid meters if appropriate

Pre-payment meter customers who would like support can contact prepay@eastsuffolk.gov.uk to find out more, or call: Prepay West at 07769 365796, or Prepay@eastsuffolk.gov.uk to find out more, or call: Prepay West at 07769 365796, or Prepay East at 07769 366229.

Referrals can be made directly from households, the voluntary sector and professionals to find prepay households who can benefit from an independent look at their bills.

Warm Homes Suffolk also offers support and advice for residents who are not pre-payment meter customers. To find out more about the support on offer, visit: https://www.warmhomessuffolk.org/

Ancestry appointed to digitise Suffolk's popular family and local history sources

More than 400 years of fascinating historical documents held at Suffolk Archives are to be digitised and made available online, thanks to an agreement between Suffolk County Council and Ancestry.

Suffolk Archives will work alongside the family history website Ancestry to create high-quality, full-colour digital images of millions of baptisms, marriage and burial records from parishes within the Diocese of St Edmundsbury and Ipswich.

The earliest records being digitised date back to 1538 and include events in the lives of notable historical figures, such as the 1776 baptism of landscape artist John Constable, and the 1846 burial of Thomas Clarkson who devoted his life to the abolition of slavery.

It is hoped that Suffolk's main parish records will be published online in early 2025 with other collections of local interest to follow. Public access will be free of charge in Suffolk

Archives branches or at any Suffolk Library. Anyone with an Ancestry subscription will also be able to access the records as part of their research from their own computer or device.

Further details about the project can be found on the <u>Suffolk Archives website</u>.

£100m broadband investment in Suffolk under government's Project Gigabit

Better broadband is on its way for around 80,000 properties across rural Suffolk in a £100 million investment under a £5 billion government infrastructure programme.

The county is one of three to benefit from Project Gigabit and was chosen to host the launch of the announcement by Minister for Data and Digital Infrastructure, Sir John Whittingdale.

Similar projects were also announced for Norfolk and Hampshire as Sir John was joined in Orford by Suffolk Coastal MP Therese Coffey and Councillor Matthew Hicks, the leader of Suffolk County Council.

Project Gigabit is the government's £5 billion mission to roll out gigabit-capable, reliable broadband across the UK.

Improved connectivity unlocks new opportunities and fuels innovation, supporting the Prime Minister's priority of growing the economy by creating better paid jobs.

Around 62,000 homes and businesses in Norfolk stand to benefit from £114 million of Project Gigabit investment, across locations including Buxton, Castle Acre and Horning.

A further 8,000 premises in the northwest of the county are being reviewed for inclusion subject to survey in the next six months.

This project is managed by BDUK who in turn have contracted CityFibre to do the actual work of installing the cabling.

CityFibre, the UK's largest independent full-fibre provider, will deliver gigabit-capable infrastructure for around 218,000 homes and businesses having secured £318 million of Project Gigabit funding after a competitive process. The provider will also be making a private investment of £170 million to deliver the project.

Decisions on where broadband infrastructure is installed will be made by BDUK and not by SCC.

Survey work in all three counties commences immediately, with the first installations in the New Year and the first live connections expected by summer 2024.

Once connected, residents and businesses will enjoy access to broadband services over a network capable of supporting speeds of up to 10Gbps.

Council to consider new chapter for library services

Suffolk County Council's Cabinet is set to discuss the future of library services in Suffolk at its next meeting on 11 July.

The current contract with Suffolk's Libraries Industrial and Provident Society (IPS), worth £5.92 million per annum, ends on 31st July 2024. The Council now needs to consider how library services will be delivered following the expiry of the contract.

The report to Cabinet will recommend that a new Library Service contract is procured using a competitive tender process.

To enable meaningful engagement, public consultation, and a competitive tender process to take place, the report also recommends that the current contract with Suffolk's Libraries IPS is extended by 10 months, to 31 May 2025.

The public consultation will be used to inform the requirements and future development of the new service.

In May 2023, Suffolk County Council's Cabinet agreed to protect library services by providing Suffolk's Libraries IPS an additional £720k per year to address increases in service costs, until the end of the current contract. The proposal to be put to cabinet on 11 July is to continue to fund Suffolk Libraries IPS at this rate for the duration of the proposed 10-month extension.

The proposed value of the new contract will be £6.842m per year, considering the increased service costs and including an additional £0.2m for the Libraries Outreach Service. The proposed term of the contract will be 6 years, with the option to extend for a further 6 years.

The recommendations will be discussed at the meeting of Suffolk County Council's Cabinet on Tuesday 11 July. Papers for the meeting can be viewed at https://committeeminutes.suffolk.gov.uk

Councillor Kay Oakes

Appendix 2

District Councillor Report: Onehouse Ward

July 2023

Council meetings	The next full Council meeting is to be held in the Blackboune Community Centre, Elmswell on Wed 18 th July from 17:30. This reflects the commitment to bring more council work back into our district.
	Objectors and supporters, including parish councils, can now address the planning committee meetings remotely, although the committee must meet in person.
Electric Vehicle Charging points in MSDC carparks	Babergh and Mid Suffolk have been awarded a £300k grant from the Office for Zero Emission Vehicles to install 28 new 22kW EV charging points in several carparks including most of the Council carparks in Stowmarket. Anglia Car Charging are beginning the Installation work this week.
National Grid Pylon consultation	National Grid has launched its latest public consultation about plans for the new high-voltage power line across East Anglia. This Norwich to Tilbury route has been opposed by the Council, particularly about the impact on the environment. There will be a public information event at The Blackbourne on Tues 11 th July 11am-4pm.
Joint Local Plan	The Examination hearings took place at the end of June. They can be viewed on YouTube https://www.youtube.com/@bmsdcjlp1676/streams .
Anti-social behaviour awareness	The MSDC Communities team have been out and about last week sharing information and answering questions from residents about anti-social behaviour. They are an additional resource to the police Safer Neighbourhood Team.
Police and Crime Panel	The Police and Crime Panel is a county wide body which scrutinises the work of the Police and Crime Commissioner. They usually meet quarterly and members of the public are welcome to attend and can ask questions relevant to an agenda item. The next meeting is to be held on Friday 14 th July; the agenda will be published 10 days before hand and any public questions need to be lodged by midnight on Tues 11 th July. More details can be found here: https://www.suffolk.gov.uk/council-and-crime-panel
Tour of Britain Cycle race in Suffolk	The route of the Tour of Britain has just been announced. Stage 5 is on Thursday 7 th September and the cyclists will race for 190 km around Suffolk starting and finishing in Felixstowe, passing through much of Mid Suffolk and Babergh.

John Matthissen

councillor@matthissen.net 01449 258894

07976 308128